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To our shareholders:

Medialink changed substantially in 2005 to perfect and
innovate its| traditional communications business lines to
meet the challenges of the lightning-fast evolution of the
media landscape and further fuel its extraordinarily
promising Teletrax media intelligence service. We ended
the year with a fourth quarter of revenue growth and great
promise for the future providing our clients with ever-more
compelling, effective and powerful services.

To harness| the impact of the ever-changing worlds of
broadcasting and the Internet for our corporate, public
relations and public affairs clients requires an organization
that is visio‘nary and nimble. We took decisive action on
the senior p‘ersonnel front in 2005 in order to maintain our
ability to successfully capitalize on new opportunities
presented by the cavalcade of new media platforms — from
video iPods: to satellite radio to streaming video on the
Internet. The personnel changes we made in 2005 were

f

difficult, but necessary, and we are now poised to build on

the moment‘um initiated by the talented and experienced
executives we recruited.

The Internet is the most vast and farthest-reaching frontier
confronted by the media communications industry. In our
continuing quest to conquer new media opportunities for
our clients, ;we significantly expanded our service offerings
to incorporate the Internet into virtually all of our many
distribution(channels, enabling us to deliver our clients’
messages directly to consumers in their homes, offices and
on the go, jon big screens and small. Whether it is the
webcast of major announcements, the posting of video and
audio of new product introductions on Yahoo! and Google,
or creating video podcasts of medical breakthroughs
accessible on iTunes and Yahoo! and AOQOL, we now
provide our; clients with the ability to reach a much more
focused anc‘l targeted audience — be it selected potential
customers, employees or shareholders — that may no longer

rely on traditional media to obtain their information.

We continue to invest in our future with the development of
technology—hriven services and solutions. We completed
Phase I of our digital asset management system (DAMS) in
2005, which resulted in significant internal operating
efficiencies|by creating a “tapeless” workflow. In 2006, we
plan to aggressively market the service, an interactive, rich
media “vault,” to our clients, and in the case of our public
relations aéency clients, to provide them with private-
branded capability to market the service to their clients as
well. This 1Wi]l allow clients to store, retrieve, collaborate
and manage their video, audio and multi-media
communications all in broadcast quality. Not only does

this new service provide us with the opportunity to generate

recurring revenue, but we designed this sophisticated,
Internet-accessed digital “library” to ensure that Medialink
is our clients' one-stop solution for the entire suite of
services we provide.

Our Teletrax™ video watermarking service became a
television industry standard during 2005. Teletrax provides
our ever-expanding roster of clients with the most robust
and “bullet-proof” solution to track and monitor the use of
their increasingly valuable video content on a worldwide
basis. Our recent entree into the direct response advertising
market expanded the industries we served and once again
demonstrated the flexibility of the Teletrax service to
provide critically important information to our clients,
whether it is for monitoring broadcasts, protecting
copyrighted material, or assessing effectiveness of
advertising campaigns.

Our partner, Royal Philips Electronics, recently developed
a software “embedding” solution to complement our
existing hardware-based service. This will enable our
clients and prospects that manage and distribute their
content in a fully digital environment to more easily
“watermark”  their = video  programming,  news,
advertisements, sports coverage and show promotions.
Philips also has developed a High Definition Television
solution, which allows Teletrax to continue to meet the
ever-evolving needs of the broadcasting industry.

We continued to build the Teletrax sales and marketing
team both in the United States and internationally and
dramatically increased our presence at key television trade
shows and in major trade publications. At the same time,
we continued to augment our client service staff and
expanded our detection network to meet the needs of
existing and prospective clients. Most gratifying, every
Teletrax client facing contract renewal executed new, long-
term agreements.

We continue to pursue opportunities and make the
necessary changes to maximize shareholder value. We
thank you for your continued support and look forward to a
future of growth and success.

Laurence Moskowitz
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
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PART 1

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are “forward looking” statements (within
the meamng of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended). Such statements involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance, or
achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or
implied by such forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such
forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions, our actual results could differ materially
from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. See “Item 1A — Risk Factors” for a description of
certain factors that might cause such a difference. '

|
Item 1. Business.
. General

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated and its subsidiaries (the “Company”, “Medialink”, “we” “us” “our
is a leading global provider of broadcast media communications services to corporations and other
organizations. Through our broadcast operations in the United States and the United Kingdom, we provide
unique news and marketing media strategies and solutions that enable our clients to inform and educate their
target audiences through various media, 1nclud1ng television, radio, print, and the Internet. Through our U.S.
Newsw1re division, we provide wire services to electronically distribute press releases and photography to news
media and on-line services for domestic governmental, public affairs, and non-profit organizations.

' Through our Teletrax subsidiaries, we provide video watermarking services to video content providers,
such as entertainment companies, news organizations, television syndicators, and direct-response marketing
companies. The Teletrax™ service provides broadcast television intelligence to enable our clients to monitor
their content.

|
In December 2004 we sold our Delahaye division, through which we  provided research services,
including the analysis of public relations and corporate communications activities on behalf of corporate and
other clients.

. Medialink was incorporated in Delaware in 1986. Our website is hitp://www.medialink.com. Our
Annual Reports on Forms 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Forms 10-Q, and Current Reports on Forms 8-K along
with any amendments to those reports are available, free of charge, on or through our Web site as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Segment Information

' See Note 21 to Medialink’s consolidated financial statements for financial information about industry
segments.

|

. Services

i Media Communications Services. Our media communications services consist of broadcast services and
press release wire services.
!

Our broadcast services operations offer a range of video and audio consultation, production, distribution
and monitoring services. Our video and audio offerings include video news releases and short-form
promotional videos, live event broadcasts, audio news releases, and electronic press kits that are suitable for all
broadcast media. Our clients can choose individual service offerings on a stand-alone basis or they can choose a
suite of our service offerings and distribution channels to better target their intended audience. We provide our
clients with consultative guidance to assist them in identifying potential interest in their message and on how to
better reach their intended audience. We offer our clients all aspects of production, including scripting,

Y . : e . . . ;
recording, editing, and narration. We distribute our clients’ content directly to targeted television and radio




stations through our comprehensive distribution platform and to on-line media outlets worldwide. In addition,
we deliver client content in multiple formats directly to consumers and-other directly targeted audiences via the
Internet. Our wide range of standard and customized ‘services enables our clients to build public recognition,
highlight the launch of new products, manage crisis situations, and meet their other communications objectives.
We monitor and analyze the extent to which content is aired through the use of three distinct services, used
either independently or in combination. The services we use to monitor broadcasts include our Teletrax™
video watermarking 'service, Mediavision, our proprietary licensed broadcast video capture and retrieval service
that retrieves video based on matching keyword searches against the closed captioning text used in broadcasts,
and other monitoring services provided by third-party vendors., This.monitoring and analysis provides valuable
feedback to our clients about the size and type of audlence that was reached, and the context in which the video
was aired. i

Video news releases are news stories that we write and produce to communicate a client’s public
relations or corporate message, and are analogous to a-printed press-release, transforming the printed word into
the sound and pictures that television newsrooms can use:in programming. . Video news releases are paid for by
the client seeking to announce news and they are delivered to the media without charge. Produced in broadcast
news style, video news releases relay the client’s news directly to television news decision makers who may use
the video material either in full or edited form. Television-stations decide whether and how to use video news
releases and the corresponding “b-roll” to fill programming time, some on a regular basis. The “b-roll” is
supplementary and back-up material that is provided with the video and generally does not contain the narrated
audio track, providing broadcasters with the ability to choose select portions of the video and provide their own
voice-over. We also provide our clients, through our “In.the Know” offering, the ability to achieve guaranteed
placement for their video release by directly purchasing the media time from select broadcasters. Short:form
promotional videos are produced for internal use primarily by our corporate clients. The production of short-
form promotlonal videos is.similar to that for video news releases but generally varies in the manner in which it
is distributed. : ,

Our service offerings for live event broadcasts include. satellite media-tours, radio media tours, video and
audio conferences, webcasts, and special events broadcasts. Satellite media.tours consist of a sequence of one-
on-one satellite interviews with a series -of pre-booked television reporters across the country or around the
world.” Satellite media tours typically involve an interview with an author, performer, executive, or other
spokesperson promoting an upcoming event, product, movie, or book release. Satellite media tours generally
are conducted from a studio but can originate from remote locations and may be aired live by the television
station. or recorded for a later airing. Radlo media tours are similar-to satellite medla tours, but-are targeted to
radio stations. : - : IR

Audio news releases are similar to video news.releases, but are targeted to radio stations. Radio stations
make editorial decisions on the use of this content and we provide guaranteed placement options through the
direct purchase of media time. We also provide electronic press kits, which are video packages provided
primarily to the entertainment industry to assist in promoting new content releases.

We rely on our, long-standing distribution alliances and our relationships with major news organizations
for distributing our broadcast services products to newsroom- decision makers. We distribute video news
releases via satellite transmission to newsrooms as well as through a digital distribution system that also is used
for distribution directly to national networks, 1nclud1ng ‘ABC and CNN. In addition, we have arrangements with
both CBS and FOX under which we have direct fiber-optic access for delivery to the national networks, which
then redistribute the content to their network affiliates.’ Through an agreement with the Associated Press for the
use of its AP Express newswire, we alert hundreds of television newsrooms to the clients’ impending video
release so that interested stations can retrieve the content from their preferred distribution .channel. We also
notify television newsrooms of the availability of client content through e-mails and direct telephone calls made
by our trained personnel. We continue to expand our distribution infrastructure, and in 2005 we began posting
video and audio podcasts.on the Internet through Yahoo! and Google. We have also developed a proprietary
distribution platform for the advance notification and delivery of multi-media content to on-line newsrooms.
Commencing in 2006, this proprietary distribution platform will also provide for the distribution of broadcast
quality video to newsrooms and journalists by syndicating our clients’ content via RSS feeds and .by direct
placement on the websites of television news stations. .




- For- international drstnbutlon we rely ‘on the services of the Associated Press which for 1nternat10nal
markets provides both the notification of.the availability of client content as well as the 1nfrastructure through
Wthh such content is drstnbuted

Our press release wire services are provided through our U:S. Newswire division, which provides clients
with immediate and ‘simultaneous electronic distribution of news releases, media advisories, and press
statements to the media and on-line services worldwide. U.S. Newswire distributes these releases via a direct
wire service feed, as well as through e-mail, satellite, the Internet, and broadcast fax. U.S. Newswire also
prov1des still photography services, including providing photographers for specific events requested by clients
and consulting with clients to assist them in determining the most effective way of delivering their message in
photographs

; . Revenues in our media communlcatlons services segment primarily those. associated with broadcast
serv1ces are subject to seasonal fluctuations. The volume of projects from clients declines immediately after
the year-end hohday season and again during the. summer months, with the latter having a much more
significant impact in Europe, resulting in lower revenues in the first and third quarters of each calendar year as
compared to the second and fourth quarters. ‘In addition, -although not seasonal in natute, the revenues from
broadcast services decline with the breakmg of significant news events, whrch pose the r1sk of crowding out the
chents message .

: Via’eo Watermarking Services. We provide our Teletrax™ video watermarking services through our
majority-owned subsidiaries, TTX (US) LLC and TTX Limited, to entertainment companies, news
ofganizations; television syndicators, and direct-response marketing companies. .- The Teletrax™ service enables
owners of video content to embed an imperceptible and indelible digital watermark into their material whenever
1t is edited, broadcast, or duplicated. A global network of decoders, or “detectors,” then captures every
broadcast incident of the embedded video whether via satellite, cable, or terrestrially and generates tracking
reports for the original content owners. Reports of individual broadcast airings are delivered online in.near real
time to each client’s custom-designed portal or in data file transfers.” Each client’s broadcast activity is updated
dynamically, 24 hours a day, enabling clients to respond immediately to. reported results such as changes in end-
user. preferences . or detections of unauthorized use. The Teletrax™ service is buﬂt upon our extensive
momtonng network and technology developed by Royal Ph111ps Electromcs

We have expanded the Teletrax network of detectors to monrtor the television broadcasts of more than
1 100 channels worldwide and include coverage of the top 150 domestic- markets, representing more than 90%
of all domestic television households. The international network monitors nearly 200 channels, broadcast from
50 nations, and comprised of 12 monitoring stations in North ‘America; Europe A51a Austraha the Middle
East and South America. : :

j Clients

Our media communications services’ client base encompasses more than 2,500 clients in a wide variety
of enterprises and organizations, including automobile manufacturers, pharmaceutical companies,  consumer
goods companies, ‘ entertainment companies, numerous governmental and not-for-profit- agencies and
associations, and the public relations firms that represent the various entities. For the year ended December 31,
2003, revenues from Altria Group, Inc., and its subsidiaries represented approximately 16. 8% of our medla
communications. services - revenues. -. No single client accounted for more than 10% of our media
communications services revenues for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004. For the years ended
December. 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, the five largest media communications services clients accounted for
approximately 12.0%, 15.9%, and 25.9%, respectively, of the segment’s revenues and the fifty largest media
communications services clients accounted for approximately 47.6%,.45.5%, and 51.1%, respectively, of the
segment’s. revenues. A significant reduction in business from anyof the segment’s clients would not have a
material -adverse effect on Medialink. We have contracts with certain clients for media communications
serv1ces but in most instances there is no contractual arrangement that would prevent clients from selectmg
other means to perform some or all of their work. : .




Our Teletrax™ video watermarking services’ client base primarily consists of entertainment companies,
news organizations, television syndicators, and direct-response marketing companies. No single client or group
of clients represents a significant portion of the segment’s revenues, and therefore a significant reduction in
business from any of the video watermarking services’ clients would not have a material adverse. effect on
Medialink. = All clients in the video watermarking services segment are under contract for a period of at least
one year, and. in most instances are under contract for periods up to three years.

Sales and Marketing

We rely primarily on an internal sales force and support staff of approximately 45 employees to sell and
market our media communications services. In certain instances, because they have conducted business
together over several years, the members of our internal sales force have established strong working
relationships with their clients. These strong client relationships enable us to obtain repeat business over a long-
term period in the absence of any contractual arrangement with our clients. However, because of these strong
client relationships, the loss of any single member of our internal sales force could result-in a decline in
revenues if clients choose to move their business to another provider.

We rely on-a separate internal sales force to sell"and market our Teletrax™ video watermarking services.
Since all clients in the video watermarking services segment are under. confract, the. loss .of any member of the
internal sales force should not result in a significant decline in revenues.

Competition

Media Communications Services. We have competitors in all of our media communications services
offerings, although most competitors do not offer our whole array of services and therefore only compete with
us for select services. Many of our competitors are specialty organizations that compete within a narrow band
of our service offerings. Certain of our competitors have available greater financial, technological, marketing,
and other resources, and therefore may pose- a more significant challenge. We compete. for media
communications services on the basis of quality of service, price of service, the ability to satisfy client demands,
and the ability to offer a wide variety of services, products and distribution means to better disseminate our
clients’ messages. :

Video Watermarking Services. We have competiters for our video watermarking services, although such
competitors rely on different technologies with different levels of reliability and integrity. We believe that our
Teletrax™ service, which embeds an imperceptible watermark in the video that cannot be. stripped or altered,
provides greater reliability and integrity than our competitors’ offerings, which rely on such means as
embedding a marker in an audio track or other technologies under which the marker can be removed either
intentionally or unintentionally. We compete for video watermarking services based on the reliability of the
Teletrax™ service and the ability for our clients to achieve a return on their investment based on this reliability.

Employees

As of December-31, 2005, we had 155 employées, 152 of ,whom.were full-time salaried employees. In
addition, we engage independent contractors and freelancers to supplement our work force during peak periods
and on a project-by-project basis. We have no employees who were covered by a collective bargaining
agreement. We believe that our relationships with our employees are satisfactory.

Geographic Information

See Note 21 to Medialink’s consolida,t‘edv financial statements for financial information about gedgraphic
regions.




Item 1A. Risk Factors. .

Major News Events ~ Events that dominate news broadcasts, such as the-evénts.of September 11, 2001,
orithe involvement by the United States in & war, may cause our clients to delay or not use our services for a
particular project as such clients may determine that their messages may not receive adequate attention in light
of'the coverage received by these other news events. Such circumstances could have a material adverse effect
on our business, operating results, and financial condition,

Susceptibility to General Economic Conditions — Our revenues are affected by our clients’ marketing
communications spending and advertising budgets. Our revenues and results of operations may be subject to
fluctuations based upon general economic conditions in the geographic locations where we offer services or
distribute content. If there were to be a continued economic downturn or a continued recession in these
geograpliic locations, then we expect that business enterprises, including our clients and potential clients, could
substantially and immediately reduce their marketing and communications budgets. In the event of such an
economic climate, there would be a material adverse effect on our busmess operating results, and financial

condmon

Receptiveness of the Media'to Our Services; Changes in Our Marketplace — We are a leading provider of
creative production and distribution services to .corporations and other organizations seeking to communicate
with the public through the news media. If the marketplace for our services should change or if the news media,
as a result of recent events or a perceived reduction in the value of our services or otherwise, should not be as
receptive to our services or should decide to reduce or eliminate its use of the news that we distribute, there
would be a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Competition — The markets for our services are highly competitive.. The prircipal competitive factors
affectiig us are effectiveness, reliability, price, technological sophistication, and timeliness. Numerous
specialty companies compete with us in each-of our service lines although no single company competes across
all service lines. Compared to us, some of our competitors or potential competitors have longer operating
histories, longer client relationships, and significantly greater financial, management, technological, sales,
marketing, and other resources. In addition, clients could perform internally all or certain of the services we
provide rather than outsourcing such services. We could face competition from companies in related
communications markets, which could offer services that are similar or superior to those offered by us. In
addition, national and regional telecommunications providers could enter the market with materially lower
electronic delivery costs, and radio and television networks could also begin transmitting business
communications separate from their news programming. Our ability to maintain and-attract clients depends to a
significant degree on the quality of services providéd and our reputation among our clients and potential clients
as compared to that of our competitors.  There can be no asstrance that we will not face increased competition
in the future or that such competition will not have a material adverse effect on our business, operatmg results,
and financial condition. :

New Services — We must develop new services to remain competitive, maintain or grow market share,
and to operate in new markets. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in developing new
services, or that those new services will meet client needs. Because of the costs incurred to develop new
services, our potential inability to market these services successfully may have a matenal adverse effect on our
business; operating results, and financial condition.

Governmental Regulations — Changes in governing laws and regulations could, directly or indirectly,
adversely affect our operations. Limitations, restrictions, or conditions imposed on us by these laws and
regulations or on the news media could have the effect of reducing the effectiveness of our services and could
heve a'material adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

‘ Provisions of Qur Charter Documents May Have Anti-takeover Effects that Could Prevent a Change in
Control Even if the Change in Control Would be Beneficial to our Stockholders — Provisions of our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation, by-laws, and Delaware law could make it more difficult for a third
party to acquire us, even if doing so would be beneficial to our shareholders.




Capital Reguirements — One or more businesses or service offering could require, or benefit from,
additional investment beyond our current capability. If such additional funding was raised by us, or one or more
of our business units separately, it could have the effect of diluting shareholders’ interests..

Orher Risk Factors — Other risk factors include our recent history of losses, our inability to achieve or
maintain profitability, our ability to develop new services and market acceptance of such services, such as
Teletrax™, our ability to develop new products and services that keep pace with technology, our ability to
develop and maintain successful relationships with ¢ritical vendors, and the potential negative effects of our
international operations. In addition, future acquisitions or divestitures and the absénce of long-term contracts
with clients and vendors may adversely affect our operatlons and have:an adverse effect on our pricing,
revenues, operatmg margms and chent base

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments,

Not applicable:’

Item 2. Properiies.

* We rent our corporate headquarters in New York City under a lease that expires in 2010. This New York
City ‘location is also our primary facility for providing the domestic broadcast services of our media
commumcatlons services segment and serves as the’ domestic base for our video watetmarking services
ségment. Under a lease that expires in 2006, we rent‘a facility in London that serves as our primary fa0111ty for
providing international media communications services and as the international base for our video
watermarking services. We rent a facility in Washlngton DC, under a lease that expires in 2008, that is our
prlmary facility for prov1d1ng press release wire setvices and also serves as a satellite sales office for broadcast
services. We rent a facility in Norwalk, CT, under a lease that expires in 2009 that serves as our information
technology base. We also rent various smaller facilities in.Los Angeles, San Francisco, Chicago, and Dallas
that serve as satelhte sales offices. We beheve that our facilities are adequate to meet our needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we become involved i in varxous legal matters that we consider to be in the ordinary
course of business. While we cannot presently determine the potential liability, if any, related to any such
matters, we believe that no such matters, 1nd1v1dually or in the aggregate, will have a material adverse effect on

our ﬁnanc1al posmon

“Item 4. Submission of Matters tf) a Vote 'beecurity Holders.

There were no matters submitted to a vote of securlty holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2005.
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!
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY
!
!

The following table lists the executive officers of the Company. Officers are appointed by and serve at
the} discretion of the Board of Directors.

Name Age  Position

Laarence Moskowitz 54  Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and President

Lawrence Thomas 44  .Chief Operating Officer

Kenneth G. Torosian 44 Chief Financial Officer

William McCarren 50  Vice President, President — U.S. Newsw1re ' :

J. Graeme McWhirter 50 Former Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Ofﬁcer Secretary, and
! Director.

Laurence Moskowitz, a co-founder of the Company, has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer, and President of the Company since its inception in 1986.

i Lawrence Thomas has served as Chief Operating Officer of the Company since September 2005. From
March 2005 until his appointment as Chief Operating Officer of the Company, Mr. Thomas served as President
of MultiVu, a provider of broadcast and multimedia production and global distribution services. Mr. Thomas
prev10usly served at MultiVu as Senior Vice President of Sales and Operations from September 2003 through
March 2005 and as Vice President from April 2002 through September 2003. Prior to such time, Mr. Thomas
served as Vice President of Multimedia Services at PR Newswire Association LLC, MultiVu’s parent company
that provides electronic delivery of news releases and information. v

Kenneth G. Torosian has served as Chief Financial Officer of the Company since August 2005. From
April 2004 until his appointment as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, Mr. Torosian served as the
pr1n01pa1 of Kerop Management Consultants LLC, a consulting firm. Through Aprll 2004, Mr. Torosian served
in. various capacities at Applied Graphics Technologies, Inc., a provider of digital prepress and asset
management services, including as Corporate Controller from January 1997 until August 2000, as Vice
President of Finance from August 2000 until September 2001, and as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Ofﬁcer from September 2001 until August 2003.

‘ William McCarren has served as President of the Company’s U.S. Newswire division, an entity he co-
founded in 1986, since the Company acqulred the operation in 1999 ‘Mr. McCarren has also served as a Vice
Pres1dent of the Company since 1999.

J. Graeme McWhirter, a co-founder of the Company, resigned as an officer and a director of the
Company and its subsidiaries effective as of December 30, 2005. Mr. McWhirter previously served as Chief
Financial Officer since 1986, as Executive Vice Pre51dent since 1992 as Secretary since 2001 and as a director
of the Company since 1998.




PARTII

Item 5. Market for Regzstrants Common Equzty, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

The Company $ common stock is traded on the National Market System of the National Association of
Securities.Dealers Automated Quotation System (“NASDAQ”™) under the symbol MDLK. The following table
sets forth the high and low closing sales prices for each indicated:

|
| co
‘ 2005 2004

High . Low High Low
Quarter ended March 31 $5.08 $3.42 $4.95 $3.20H
- Quarter ended June 30 - $4.18 _ $2.91 $4.38 $3.44
Quarter ended September 30 $3.21 $2.56 $3.75 $2.70
Quarter ended December 31 S $3.50° $2.77 $3.56 © o $3.00

As of February 28, 2006, there were approx1mately 109 registered holders of record of the Company s
common stock. No dividends have been paid on the Company s common stock.

The following table sets forth certain mformatlon as of December 31, 2005, with respect to the Company’s
equity compensation plans under which securities of the Company are authonzed for issuance.

Equity Compénéation Plan Information

! Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation
of outstanding opﬁons, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(2) ‘ (b) ©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 1,066,919 $4.94 558,069

The Company does not have any equity compensatlon plans that have not been authorized by its
stockholders.

The Company has neither sold any unreg1stered securmes nor purchased any of its equity securities during
the year ended December 31, 2005.




!
Iteni 6. Selected Financial Data.

December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(In thousands of dollars, except per-share amounts)

Revenués $ 36,172 - $§ 36,863 $§ 35383 $ 38,103 $ 38610

Loss frc‘)‘m continuing operations  $  (5,740) $ (3,746 $ (2,338 $ 171D $  (4,862)

‘ o
Loss per common share from
continuing operations:

Basic $ (0.95) § (0.62) 5 (0.39) $ 029 " §$ (050
Di}uted $ (0.95) $ . (0.62) $ (0.39) $ (0.29) $ " (0.50)
Total assets - » - $ 32926 $ 38,773 $ 37,186 $ 40,643 $ 40,813
Obligat}ions under capital leases $ 97 $ 1737 $ 217 $ - 95
Other long-term liabilites ~ § 1,202 » ‘
Convertible debentures 4045 3,833 - S .
Total long-term obligations $ 5247 $ 3930 S 173§ 217§ 95

r
i No cash dividends have been paid or declared on the Company’s common stock.
b

1
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Item 7.  -Management's Discussion and Analysi’s of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis (in thousands of dollars) should be read 1n con]unctlon w1th the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and notes thereto. »

Results of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2005 compared wzth 2004

Revenues in 2005 decreased by S$151, or 0 4%, -as compared t0 2004. Revenues from media
communications services in 2005 decreased by $531, or 1.5%, to $34,708 primarily as a result of a decrease in
revenues from broadcast services of $1,112, which was. partially offset by an increase in press release wire
services of $581. The decline in revenues from broadcast services was primarily the result of a significant decline
in business from a major client. Revenues from Teletrax™ video watermarking services in 2005 increased by
$380, or 23.4%, to $2,004 due primarily to an increase in service revenues of $560 resulting from an increase in
the number of clients being served. Video watermarking services revenues also include $184 and $364 from
equ1pment sales for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

: Dlrect costs: decreased by $161 in 2005 and as a percentage of revenue remained relatlvely flat with 2004
decreasmg t0 39.6% in 2005 from 39.8% in 2004 . .

Selling, general, and admlmstratlve (“SG&A™) expenses in 2005 increased by $4,033 as compared to 2004,
and as a percentage of revenue increased to 71.1% in 2005 from 59.8% in 2004. SG&A expenses in 2005
included $2,010 in severance costs incurred as a result of the termination of senior operations and executive
management personnel in the fourth quarter of 2005. Exclusive of such severance costs, SG&A expenses as a
percent of revenue were 65.6% in 2005. Other payroll-related costs increased by $512 in 2005 primarily as the
result of approximately $990 from additional staffing, including additions for executive management and sales
personnel for Teletrax™ services, and additional costs incurred in the media communications business, partially
offset by a decrease ‘of approximately $563 for bonuses primarily as a result of certain deal-specific bonuses
earned in 2004 with no corresponding bonuses being earned in 2005. 'Non-payroll SG&A increased by $1,511
primarily as a result of additional promotion costs, professional fees, and non-payroll personnel costs incurred in
2005. ;

Depreciation and amortization. expense in 2005 decreased by $162 as compared to 2004 primarily as a
result of amortization of intangible assets in 2004 that'were fully amortized by the end of 2004, resulting in no
corresponding expense in 2005. Depreciation and amortization in 2005 and 2004 includes deprec1atlon related to
Teletrax™ video watermarking services of 3614 and $547 respectwely

The Company had an operatmg loss of $5, 559 in 2005 as compared to'an operating loss of $2,660 in'2004.
The operating losses in 2005 and 2004 included operating losses of $2,651and $2,033, respectively, from the
Company’s 76%-owned Teletrax subsidiaries. The Company’s results of operations included 100% of the losses
from the Teletrax subsidiaries since the minority shareholder has no future funding obligations.

Interest expense, net of interest income, increased by $98 in 2005 as compared to 2004 primarily due to the
issuance of $5,000 convertible debentures in November. 2004. Interest expense in 2005 related to these
debentures was $694, which included $266 of amortization of discount and deferred financing fees, an increase of
$605 as compared to 2004. Prior to the issuance of the convertible debentures, the Company had available a line
of credit, which was repaid in December 2004, Interest expense on the Company’s line of credit in 2004 totaled
.$301. The increase in interest expense was partlally offset by an increase in interest income durmg 2005 of $191
resultmg from higher- average cash balances in 2005:

‘The Company established a valuation allowance to reserve for certaln of its deferred tax assets at December
31, 2004, based on its assessment that it was not more likely than not that the benefit associated with the deferred
tax assets will be realized in future periods. - Based on its most recent projections, the Company continues to
believe that it is not more likely than not that such benefit will be realized, and therefore has established a valuation
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|
allowance to reserve for certain of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2005. The valuation allowance was
$4,739 and $2,803 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Year ended December 31, 2004, compa?ed With 2003

Revenues in 2004 were $1,480, or 4.2%, higher than in 2003. Revenues from media communications

services in 2004 increased by $501, or 1.4%, to $35,239. Revenues from Teletrax™ video watermarking services
in 2004 increased by $979, or 151.8%, to $1,624 due primarily to an increase in service revenues of $674 resulting
from an increase in the number of clients being served. Video watermarking services’ revenues also include $364
and'$59 from equipment sales for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.
' Direct costs increased by $2,065 in 2004, and as a percentage of revenues increased to 39.8% in 2004 from
35.7% in 2003. This increase in direct costs as a percentage of revenues was primarily attributable to changes in
the service offering mix during 2004 as well as an increase in marketing communications services where the
Company acts more like an advertising company purchasing paid placements on cable television.

' SG&A expenses in 2004 decreased by $199 as compared to 2003. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A
decreased to 59.8% in 2004 from 62.9% in 2003. Payroll-related costs increased by approximately $374 primarily
as a result of an increase of approximately $580 for bonuses as a result of deal-specific bonuses earned: in 2004
related to the sale of the Company’s research business and the convertible debenture financing, partially offset by a
decrease related to employee termination costs incurred during 2003 with no corresponding costs incurred in 2004.
Additional staffing and normal payroll increases in both media communication services and Teletrax™ video
watermarking services also resulted in additional payroll-related costs of approximately $104 in 2004. Non-payroll
SG&A decreased by $573 primarily as a result of lower costs in 2004 upon the completion of the first stage of the
Teletrax™ network in 2003 and a decrease in advertising and marketing, travel and entertainment, and occupancy

cos"ts in media communications services in 2004.

| The Company recognized a loss of $247 in 2004 related to its 50% interest.in & joint venture interest-as
compared to a loss of $316 from this joint venture in 2003. In addition, the Company recorded impairment charges
totalmg $715 in 2004, which consisted of a loss of $342 on the 1mpa1rment of two investments accounted for under
the cost method and a non-cash charge of $373 to write off the remaining investment upon dissolution of the

aforementloned joint venture.

‘; The Company incurred a restructuring charge of $592 in 2003 related to-the closing of a facility and a
related sublease arrangement for office space in its Norwalk, CT, location. .

The Company had an operating loss of $2, 660 in 2004 as compared to an operating loss of $2,256 in 2003.
The operating losses in 2004 and 2003 included operating losses of $2,033 and §$2,448, respectwely, from the
Company s 76%-owned Teletrax subsidiaries.

i . .
" Interest expense, net of interest income, increased by $111 in 2004 as compared to 2003 primarily due to the
iss:uance of $5,000 convertible debentures in November 2004. Interest expense in 2004 related to these debentures
was $89, which included $41 of amortization of discount and deferred financing fees. Additionally, the Company
experlenced increases in -interest rates during the latter part of 2003 and throughout 2004 on the Company’s
previous line of credlt facility, which further contributed to the increase in interest expense in 2004. -

| Although. the Company incurred a loss from continuing operatlons before taxes of $3,053 in 2004, the
Company recognized an income tax provision of $693 primarily as a result of an additional valuation allowance
recorded against the Company’s- deferred tax assets and certain state and local taxes. The Company established a
valuatlon allowance to reserve for certain of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2004, based .on its assessment
that it was not more likely than not that the benefit associated with the deferred tax assets will be realized in future
periods. The valuation allowance at December 31, 2004, was $2,803, an increase of $1,839 from the valuation
.allowance at December 31, 2003. The Company is also subject to certain.minimum state and local taxes in the
various jurisdictions in which it conducts business, which result in a provision for income taxes being recognized

on operating-losses.
|
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In connection with the sale in December 2004 of Delahaye, its division that provided research services, the
Company recognized income from discontinued operations in 2004 of $2,775, which consisted of a gain on the sale
of $3,049, net of taxes and transaction expenses, and a loss from operatlons of $274

quuldlty and Capital Resources : ‘

The Company continues to finance its operations and capital investment requirements from its existing cash
reserves, which totaled $7,303 at December 31, 2005.. The Company’s cash reserves were generated from $5,000
of convertible debentures issued 'in Novémber 2004, of which $2,000 was initially used to fully repay the
Company’s line of credit facility, and from the proceeds of $7, 700 from the December 2004 sale of Delahaye, the
Company s research d1V1s1on

During 2005, accounts receivable decreased by $795 due primarily to the timing of cash receipts from
clients. - Other current assets decreased by $1,288 during 2005 primarily as a result of collections of non-trade
receivables, including approximately $600 from the purchaser of the' Company’s research division. Working
capital at December 31, 2005, decreased by $4,228 from 2004 primarily as a result of funding the Company’s
operating-- losses and fundmg capital investments made during the.period, including amounts expended for
Teletrax™.

Cash ﬂows from operating activities during 2005”decreased by $4,762 as compared to.2004 due primarily
to a decrease in cash generated from operations. During 2005, the Company invested $1,862 in new equipment
and new technology products and repaid $117 of capital lease obligations:. These amounts were primarily funded
from the Company’s working capital and $280 in proceeds received upon the exercise of stock options.

The Company expects to spend approximately $1,750 over the course of the next twelve months for capital
improvements primarily for the continuing build out of the infrastructure for Teletrax™ and for modernization of
its media communications services business. The Company intends to finance these expenditures with working
capital. . The Company believes that its Workmg cap1ta1 will provide sufﬁCIent cash ﬂows to fund its cash needs
throughout 2006. '

The Company does not believe that inflation has had a material impact on its business.

- Off-balance sheet arrangements
The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or.are reasonably likely to have
. a current-or future effect on its financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of
operatlons hquldlty, capital expenditures or capltal resources that are material to investors.

Contractual Obllgatlons

- ‘The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2005.

Payments due by period
Total ’ Less than 1 year ’ 1;3 years 3-5 years
Long-term debt obligations $ 5 000 - . ; $ 5,000
‘Capital lease obligations ‘ 70 ¢ 8 70 '
‘Operating lease obligations ~* =~ 10,735 . 3,263 s 4597 2,875
Other long-term liabilities - 1,894 692 : 971 231
Total ‘ ’ ) 17,699 - $ 4,025 $ 5,568 $ 8,106
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Critical Accounting Policies
I . " - i
1 N . . . . .

| Management must make certain estimates and assumptions in preparing the financial statements of the

Company. Certain of these estimates and assumptions relate to matters that are inherently uncertain as they pertain
to future events. Management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in preparing the financial
* statements of the Company were the most appropriate at that time, although actual results could differ s1gn1ﬁcantly
from those estimates under different conditions. : :

f Note 2, “Summary of S1gn1ﬁcant Accountmg Policies,” to the Company’s consohdated financial statements

included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K provides a detailed discussion of the various accounting policies of
the Company. We believe that the following accounting policies are critical sincethey require subjective or
complex judgments that could potentially affect the financial condition or results of operations of the Company.
| . . . .
' Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: . The Company assesses the carrying value of its accounts receivable
based on management's assessment of the collectibility of specific client accounts, which includes consideration of
the credit worthiness and financial condition of those specific clients. The Company. also assesses the carrying
value of accounts receivable balances based on other factors, including historical experience with bad debts, client
concentrations, the general economic environment, and the aging of such receivables. The Company records an
allowance for doubtful accounts to reduce its accounts receivable balance to the amount that is reasonably believed
to be collectible. Based on the Company’s estimates, an-allowance for doubtful accounts of $610 was established at
Dec‘ember 31, 2005, compared to an allowance of $593 at December 31, 2004. A change in the Company’s
assumptions, including the credit worthiness: of clients and the default rate on receivables, would result in the
Company recovering an amount .of its -accounts receivable that differs from its current carrying value. Such
difference, either positive or negative, would be reﬂected as a component of the Company s SG&A expense in
future periods.- : . ‘ .

- Valuation of Long-Lived Assets: In assessing the carrying value of its property and equipment and other
long-lived assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company reviews such assets for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
Recoverability is determined by comparing the carrying value of the assets to the future undiscounted cash flows
the assets are expected to generate. 1f it is determined that the carrying amount is not recoverable, an impairment
charge is recognized equal to the amount by which the carrying value of the asset exceeds its fair market.value. No
events or changes in circumstances have occurred that required the Company to assess the recoverability of its
property and equipment, and therefore the Company. has not recognized any impairment charges. A change in the
Company’s business climate in future periods, including an inability- to effectively market and sell new service
offerings in which significant investments have been made or a.general downturn in one of the Company’s
operations, could lead to a required assessment of the recoverability of the Company’s long-lived assets, which
may subsequently result in an impairment charge.

|

‘ Valuation of Goodwill: In asséssing the- carrying value of goodwill in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intanglble Assets,” the Company compared the carrying value of its reporting units to their
fam values. The Company is required to test its goodwill for impairment at least annually, and more frequently if
an event occurs or circumstances- change to indicate that an impairment may have occurred. The Company’s
annual testing date is September 30. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company aggregated certain
components to arrive at one of its reporting units. The Company estimated the fair value of its reporting units
using a discounted cash flow approach. In estimating the fair value of its reporting units, the Company had to
make various assumptions, including projections of future revenues based on assumed long-term growth rates,
estimated costs, and the appropriate discount rates. The estimates used by the Company for long:term revenue
growth and future costs are based on historical data, various internal estimates, and a variety of external sources,
and are developed as part of the Company’s routine long-range planning process. -The carrymg value of the
Company’s goodwill was $13,006 at September 30, 2005. Based on the use of these assumptions in estimating the
fair value of each reporting unit, there was no impairment of goodwill as of September 30, 2005, the most recent
annual testing date. A change in the Company’s assumptions, including lower long-term growth rates, higher
operatmg costs, or higher discount rates could cause a change in the estimated fair value of the Company’s




reporting units, and therefore could result in an 1mpa1rment of goodwill, which would have a significant adverse
effect on the Company’s results of operatlons

Income Taxes: In assessing the recoverab111ty of its deferred tax assets, the Company compared the carrying
value of its deferred tax assets to the tax-effected projections of its taxable income over future periods in which
such assets could be realized. In estimating its future ‘taxable income, the Company had to make various
assumptions about its future operating performance. Based on the Company’s projection of future taxable income,
which include the effects of recent operating and tax losses, management believed that it was not more likely than
not that the benefit associated with the deferred tax assets will be realized in future periods. Accordingly, a
valuation allowance in the amount of $4,739 and $2,803 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, was
established to reserve against the carrying value of certain of the Company’s deferred tax assets. A change in the
Company’s assumptions, including better operating performance than projected, could result in a change in the
amount of deferred tax assets that will be recovered, and therefore could result in a reduction to the valuation
allowance established at December 31, 2005. Such an adjustment would be reflected as a component of the
Company’s provision for income taxes in the period of the adjustment.

Recent Accounting. Pronouncements - .

In December 2004, SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123R"), was
issued. SFAS No. 123R, which replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and
supercedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB™) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
requires that all share-based payments to employees; including grants of employee stock options, be recognized in
the financial statements based on their fair values beginning with the first interim or annual period commencing
after December 15, 2005. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS No. 123 no longer will be
an alternative to financial statement recognition. The Company is required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in its first
quarter of fiscal 2006. Commencing January 1, 2006, the Company will use a binomial lattice model for valuing
all share-based payments as opposed to using the Black-Scholes option price model, which the Company used for
the pro forma disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123. The Company will treat stock options with graded
vesting that are granted after January 1, 2006, as a single grant on which compensation expense will be recognized
over the service period as opposed to treating each individual vesting tranche as a separate grant. The Company
has elected to use the modified prospective application for the transition upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R,
which requires compensation expense to be recognized on options granted subsequent to the adoption date as well
as on options granted prior to the adoption date for which the requisite service period has not been completed as of
December 31, 2005. Perlods prior to the date that SFAS No. 123R is adopted are not adjusted under the modified
prospective apphcatlon The Company estimates that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will result in recognizing in
future periods approximately $278 in compensation expense associated with stock options granted prior to the
date of adoption of SFAS No. 123R for’ which the requisite service period has not been completed as of December
31, 2005. Of this total, the Company estimates that approx1mately $125 will be recognized in 2006. The
Company expects that the adoptlon of SFAS No. 123R will have an adverse impact on its consolidated results of
operations and earnings per share since, in addition to'recognizing compensation expense on options granted prior
to the adoption date, all future grants of stock options will result in the recognition of compensation expense.

In May 2005 SFAS No, 154, “Accountmg Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of APB Opinion
No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”, was issued and is effective for accounting changes and corrections of errors
made in fiscal years begmmng after December 15, 2005. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary changes in
accounting principles and to changes required by accounting pronouncements that do not contain transition
provisions. SFAS No. 154 requires, among other things, the retrospective application to prior periods’ financial
statements of changes in accounting principles as opposed to including in net income the cumulative effect of the
change in accounting principal in the period-of adoption, which was the standard under APB Opinion No. 20,
“Accounting Changes.” The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 154 on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations is not determinable since SFAS No. 154 only affects the adoption of accounting standards in
future periods.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk..
| The Company’s primary market exposures are interest rate r1sk and forelgn currency rate rlsk

' The Company had convertible debentures with a face value of $5 000 (%4, 045 net of unamortized dlscount)
outstanding at December 31, 2005. The interest rate on. these debentures s the higher of 7% or the 6-month
LIBOR rate (as defined) plus 4.50%. - At December 31, 2005, the interest rate on the convertible debentures was
9.20%. A change in interest rates of 1.0% would result in a change in the annual interest costs under the
convertible debentures of approx1rnate1y $50 based on the face amount of outstandmg borrowmgs at December 31,
2005 . : :

The Company has two operations in the United Kingdom that result in foreign currency exposure to the
British pound. As of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, these operations aggregated approximately 15%
of the Company’s current assets, approximately 19% of the Company’s current liabilities, and approximately 21%
of the Company’s loss from continuing operations before income taxes.. A fluctuation in the United States dollar to
the British pound conversion rate would result in a change in the amount realized by the Company from the results
of these operations and from the settlement of its monetary assets and liabilities denominated.in British pounds.

!

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

See Index to Financial Statements and F 1nan01a1 Statements commencing on page F-1 herein.

Ttem 9. Changes in and Dlsagreements With' Accountants on Accounttng and ananczal
Dtsclosure :

' None.
|
i

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

The Company’s management evaluated, with the pamclpatlon of the Company s principal executive and
principal financial officers, the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d- 15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) as
of December 31, 2005. Based on their evaluation, the Company’s pnnc1pa1 eXecutive and principal findncial
officers concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as. of December 31,
2005 The design of any system of controls is based in part upon certain assumptioris about thé hkehhood of
future events, and there can be no assurarice that any design w1ll succeed in achlevmg 1ts stated goals under all

potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.

- There have been no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules
13a:15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31,
2005, that has matenally affected, or is reasonably likely to affect, the Company S 1nterna1 control over financial
reportlng

'

Item 9B. Other.lnfothation.

None.
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers ofthe Registrant.

(a) Directors — The information with respect to directors required by this item is incorporated herein by
reference to the Company’s 2006 Definitive Proxy Statement to be separately filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission by April 30, 2006.
(b) Oj}‘z‘cers —The 1nformat10n W1th respect}to officers required by this item is included at the end of Part
I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading “Executive Officers of the Company”.
Item 11. Executive ‘Compen's'atio'n.
The information required by this 1tem is mcorporated herem by reference to the Company’s 2006 Definitive
Proxy Statement to be separately filed with the Securmes and Exchange Commission by April 30, 2006.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Benefi czal Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters.

Except as set forth below, the information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the
Company’s 2006 Definitive Proxy Statement to be separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by
April 30, 2006. ‘

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2005, with respect to the Company’s
equity compensation plans under which securities of the Company are authorized for issuance.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining

Number of securities to Weighted-average available for future issuance
be issued upon exercise exercise price of under equity compensation
of outstanding options, outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(2) ' (b) ©
Equity compensation plans
approved by security holders 1,066,919 | $4.94 558,069

The Company does not have any equity compensation plans that have not been authorized by its stockholders.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required by this item is incorpofated herein by reference to the Company’s 2006 Definitive
Proxy Statement to be separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by April 30, 2006.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s 2006 Definitive
Proxy Statement to be separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission by April 30, 2006.
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PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Listed below are the documents filed as part of this report;

L.

Financial Statements and the Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Flrm : |

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December"31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Notes to consolidated financial statements

Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule I — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003

Exhibits:

See Exhibit Index commencing on page G-1 herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED

By: /s/ Laurence Moskowitz

Laurence Moskowitz ,
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President
Date: March 31, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 31, 2006.

Signature Title
By: /s/ Laurence Moskowitz m ‘
Laurence Moskowitz Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ Kenneth G. Torosian
Kenneth G. Torosian Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

By: /s/ Bruce Bishop
Bruce Bishop Director

By: /s/ Harold Finelt
Harold Finelt Director

By: /s/ John M. Greening ;
John M. Greening . Director .

By: /s/ Donald Kimelman ‘
Donald Kimelman Director

By: /s/ Douglas S. Knopper
Douglas S. Knopper Director !

By: /s/ Catherine Lugbauer ‘
Catherine Lugbauer Director

By: /s/ James J. O’Neill ‘
James J. O’Neill . Director :

By: /s/ Theodore Wm. Tashlik j
Theodore Wm. Tashlik Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public' Accounting Firm

Th‘e Board of Directors

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated:
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Medlalmk Worldwide
»Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, cash flows; and stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-year
perlod ended December 31, 2005. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements we have also audited thé financial statement schedule for each of the years in the three-
year period ended December 31, 2005 included on page S-1. These consolidated financial statements
and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. QOur,,
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Medialink Worldwide Incorporated and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation
to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material
respects, the information set forth therein.

(signed) KPMG LLP
New York, New York

March 24, 2006




MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands of dollars, except share and per-share amounts)

December 31,
‘ _ 2005 2004
ASSETS
Current Assets: ;
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,303 $ 11,675
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$610 and $593 5,584 6,379
Inventory % 371 313
Prepaid expenses - ‘ 566 390
Prepaid and refundable taxes ‘ 906 565
Other current assets :' 48 1,336
Total current assets } 14,778 20,658
Property and equipment - net i 4,380 4,069
Goodwill ' | 13,006 13,006
Other assets 762 1,040
Total assets $ 32,926 g 38,773
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS‘ EQUITY
Current Liabilities: ‘
Accounts payable : $ 1,665 $ 2,498
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities ; 5,922 6,358
Current portion of capital lease obligation l 70 113
Taxes payable 1 - 340
Total current liabilities ) ‘ 7,657 9,309
Convertible debentures, net of unamortized discount of $955 and $1,167 4,045 3,833
Capital lease obligation, net of current portion - 97
Other long-term liabilities ‘ ; 1,586 454
Total liabilities . ‘ 13,288 ' 13,693
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' Equity:
Series A Preferred stock: $.01 par value, authorized 50, OOO shares; none
issued and outstanding
Common stock: $.01 par value, authorized 15 ,000,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 6,155,360 shares in 2005 and 6,057,587 shares in 2004 62 61
Additional paid-in capital . ; - 26,591 26,291
Accurmulated deficit ” 1 : (6,279) (733)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ‘ (393) (196)
Common stock in treasury (at cost, 101,121 shares) | ' (343) (343)
Total stockholders' equity ‘ 19,638 25,080
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 32,926 $ 38,773

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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‘ : MEDIALINK WORLDWIBDE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
i CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per-share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003

Revenues $ 36,712 $ 36,863 $ 35383

‘ .

Operating expenses: _ o
Direct costs 14,522 14,683 12,618
Selling, general, and administrative expenses 26,089 22,056 . 22,255
Depreciation and amortization 1,660 . 1,822 1,858
Loss; from joint venture - 247 ) 316
Impdirment of investments - 715 .-
Res‘qucturing charges - - 592

" Total (j)perating expenses 42,271 39,523 37,639 .

Operating loss (5,559) (2,660) (2,256)

Interest expense - net (491) (393) .  (282)

Loss from continuing operations before taxes , (6,050) (3,053) (2,538)

Incomg tax expense (benefit) (310) 693 © (200)

Loss ﬂom continuing operations (5,740) . (3,746) - (2,338)

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 194 2,775 (354)

Net loss $ (5,546 $ 97)  $ (2,692)

Net loss § (5546) S (971) 8 (2,692) .

Other comprehensive income (loss) (197) 152 7

Comprehensive loss § (5,743) $  (819) $ (2,685) .

Basic and diluted income (loss) per common share: ‘ - )

Loss from continuing operations § (095 § (0.62) § (039
Income (loss) from discontinued operations ' 0.03 - 0.46 » (0.06)
Net loss | $ (092 S (016 $  (0.49)
Weigﬁted average number of common shares - basic and diluted 6,052 - 5,998 -~ 5,956

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands of dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: - = |

Net loss ‘

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (used in) prov1ded by
operating activities: : -

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for bad debts

Impairment of investinents

Deferred income taxes

Loss from joint venture

Restructuring charges

Gain on sale of division and loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes

Other

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of dispositions:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Prepaid and refundable income taxes and taxes payable -

Accounts payable and accrued expenses \

Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities of discontinued operatlons
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTI‘NG ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of division

Capital contributions to joint venture

Entities purchased, net of cash acquired

Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operations
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities :

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on line of credit
Borrowings under line of credit
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debentures
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock in connection
with the exercise of stock options
Repayments of obligations under capital lease
Other financing activities
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents |

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

.

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
(Revised) (Revised)
$  (5,546) $ (971H) $ (2,692)
1,660 1,822 1,858
158 147 (64)
- 715 -
- 2,004 (150)
- 247 316
- 592
(194) (2,775) 354
296 32 -
463 (477) 12) -
1,015 (980) (129) -
(681) 466 1,579
(945) 3,453 . (1,287)
1,148 (49) (86)
- (1,498) (235)
(2,626) 2,136 T 44
(1,862) (733) (1,243)
- 7,700 '
- (255)
- (341)
- (120)- (92)
(1,862) 6,592 (1,676)
- (5,500) (1,304)
- : 267
- 4,758 -
280 44 4
(117) (81) (76)
(13) - -
150 (779) (1,109
(4,338) 7,949 (2,741)
(34) 20 57
11,675 3,706 6,390
$ 7,303 $ 11,675 $ 3,706

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
1 (In thousands of dollars)

P ' : Accumulated

. . Additional Retained Other Common
| . Common Paid-in Earnings Comprehensive Stock in
' Stock Capital (Deficit) Income (Loss) Treasury

Balance at January 1, 2003 $ 59 . $ 24769 -$ 2930 S (355) $  (200)
Issuance of 125,622 shares of common stock in :

connection with acquisitions 1 274
Issuance of 1,600 shares of common stock in

connection with exercise of stock options 4
Unrealized gain from foreign currency translation

adjustments ' 7
Net loss : (2,692)

Balance at December 31, 2003 60 25,047 238 (348) (200)
Warrants granted in connection with issuance of -
convertible debentures g 1,200
Receipt of 43,997 shares of common stock as repayment . ,
of loan . . o _ ‘ (143)
Issuance of 15,257 shares of common stock in ' .
connection wit“h exercise .of stock options 1 44
Unrealized gain from foreign currency translation '
adjustments : . : 152
Net loss | ‘ v (971)

Balance at December 31, 2004 61 26,291 (733) ' (196)' (343)
Issuance of 97,77j3 shares of common stock in A

connection with exercise of stock options 1 279
Unrealized loss from foreign currency translation 7

adjustments _ ‘ (197
Compensation expense recognized on stock options 21
Net loss j (5,546)

Balance at December 31, 2005 62 26,591 (6,279) . (393) (343)

J

See notes to consolidated financial statements -
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. MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED .
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share and per-share amounts)

1. Organization

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) provide broadcast, media
communications services and video watermarking services to corporations and other organizations. Through its
broadcast operations in the United States and the United Kingdom, the Company offers news and marketing
media strategies and solutions by providing consultation, production, distribution, and monitoring services that
enable its clients to inform and educate their target audiences through various media. Through its U.S.
Newswire division, the Company provides press release wire services for domestic governmental, public affairs,
and non-profit organizations news sources. Through its Teletrax subsidiaries, the Company provides video
watermarking. services that provide broadcast television intelligence to video content providers such as
entertainment companies, news organizations, television syndicators, and direct-response marketing companies,
enabling clients to monitor their content.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. The Company consolidates entities in which it owns greater than 50% of the voting
equity of an entity or otherwise is able to exert control. The Company consolidates its 76%-owned Teletrax
subsidiaries and includes 100% of the losses from these subsidiaries in its consolidated results of operations
since the minority shareholder has no future funding obligations. All intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. »

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly liquid
investments having original maturities of three months or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: The Cdmpany recognizes bad debt expense on trade receivables
through an allowance account using estimates based .on past experience, and writes off trade receivables against
the allowance account when the Company believes it has exhausted all available means of collection.

Inventory: Inventory consists solely of equipment for sale in connection with the Company’s video
watermarking services. Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market, with cost determined on a specific
identification basis. :

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment is stated-at cost: Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which generally range from three years for
certain equipment to ten years for certain furniture and fixtures. Leasehold improvements and assets recorded
under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line bas1s over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the
terms of the leases. :

Long-lived Assets: In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” the Company evaluates the recoverability
of its long-lived assets by comparing their carrying value to the expected future undiscounted cash flows to be
generated from such assets when events or circumstances indicate that an impairment may have occurred.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets: In, accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but rather
are subject to an annual impairment test. The Company performs its annual impairment test on September 30 of
each year, or more frequently if an event occurs or circumstances change to indicate than an impairment may
have occurred. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their useful lives.
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Equity Investments: The Company accounts for its investments in other entities under the equity method
when it owns between 20% and 50% of the voting equity and does not have the ability to exercise control over
the other entity or is otherwise not required to consolidate the entity in accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation Number (FIN) 46(R), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The
Combpany accounts for its investments in other entities under the cost method when it owns less than 20% of the
voting equity and does not exert significant influence. Equity investments are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the fair value of an equity investment is less than its
carrying arnount and that such a decline in value is determined to be other thdn temporary.

! Revenue Recognition: Revenue is generally recogmzed when the Company has substantially completed
performance and no longer has a consequentlal obligation fo its chents

{  Media communications services: Revenue from the Company’s broadcast services offerings,
including, the production of video and audio content and the broadcast of live events, is recognized upon
substantial completion of the services being provided. Revenue from the distribution and monitoring of video
and,audio news releases is recognized upon d1str1but1on Revenue from press release wireé services is
recogmzed upon distribution. S ‘ T

:

‘ Video Watermarking Services: Revenue from Teletrax™ video watermarking services is recognized
ratably over the period of service being provided. Revenue from the sale of equipment:is recognized upon
installation and acceptance by the client. Revenues include $184, $364, and $59 from equlpment sales for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectlvely

i Operatmg Costs: Direct costs primarily represent incremental third- party costs incurred in connection
with providing services to clients, including production costs, as well as incremental costs incurred for
commissions paid to salaried sales personnel. Selling, general, and -administrative costs include all internal
costs, including payroll-related and other internal costs incurred in connection with providing services to clients,
mcludmg all internal production costs.

. (

‘ Advertising expenses: Advertising costs are generally expensed in the period in which the advertising

appears in print or is broadcast. The Company incurred advertising expense, exclusive of sales and marketing
efforts, of approxrmately $138, $146, and $253 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,

respectlvely

i Income Taxes: The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” Foreign subsidiaries are taxed according to the regulations existing in the
countries in which they do business. Provision has not been made for United States income taxes on
distributions that may be received from foreign subsidiaries, which are considered to be permanently invested
overseas. A valuation allowance is recorded if it is more likely than not that some portron or all of the deferred
‘tax assets will not be realized in future perlods

5‘ Foreign Currency T ranslatzon: Assets and ‘liabilities of foreign operations are translated from the
‘functional currency into United States dollars using-the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.
Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated from the functional currency into United States
dollars using the average exchange rate for the period. Adjustments resulting from the translation into United
States dollars are included as a component of “Other comprehensive loss.” :

\
|
i
t
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Stock-Based Compensation: Through December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for stock-based
employee compensation based on the intrinsic value of the stock options granted in accordance with the
provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees.” Information relating to stock-based employee .compensation, including the pro forma effects had
the Company accounted for stock-based employee compensation based on the fair value of stock options

granted in accordance with SFAS No. 123 “Accountmg for Stock Based Compensat1on is as follows:
s

. 2005 .- 2004 ’ . -2003

Net loss as reported - S 5546 S 1) 8T (2.692)
Stock-based compensation expense net of tax, L . o

included in net loss as reported 21 -
Stock-based compensation expense net of tax, under ‘ : o .

fair value method . (349 . - = (165 - (259)
Pro forma net loss $§ (5874 $ (1,136) $ (2,951
Basic and diluted loss per share as reported $ (092 $ (0.16) R S (0.45)
Pro forma basic and diluted loss per share D $ (097 $ (019 . $ .(0.50)

Statements of Cash Flows:' The consolidated statements of cash flows have been revised to teflect thé
cash flows from discontinued operations as a separate-component of cash flows from operating activities and
cash flows from investing activities. Such cash flows from discontinued operations had previously been
combined and reported as a single amount for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 R

Estimates: The preparation of the Company s consolidated ' financial statements' in' conformity ‘with
generally accepted accounting principles requires management-to make estimates and assumptions ‘that ‘affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities-at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications: Certain prior-period amounts in the accompanying financial statements have been
reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

Récently Issued Accounting Standards: In December 2004, SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-
Based Payment" ("SFAS No. 123R"), was issued. SFAS No. 123R, which replaces SFAS No. 123 and
supercedes APB No. 25, requires that all share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee
stock options, be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair values beginning with the first
interim or annual period commencing after December 15, 2005. The pro forma disclosures previously permitted
under SFAS No. 123 no longer will be an alternative to financial statement recognition.  The Comipany is
required to adopt SFAS No. 123R in its first quarter of fiscal 2006. Commencing January 1, 2006, the Company
will use a binomial lattice model for valuing all share-based payments as opposed to using the Black-Scholes
option price model, which the Company used for the pro forma disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123. The
Company will treat stock options with graded vesting that are granted after January 1, 2006, as a single grant on
which compensation expense will be recognized over the service period as opposed to treating each individual
vesting tranche as a separate grant. The Company has elected to use the modified prospective application for
the transition upon the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, which requires compensation expense to be recognized on
options granted subsequent to the adoption date as well as on options granted prior to the adoption date for
which the requisite service period has not been completed as of December 31, 2005. Periods prior to the date
that SFAS No. 123R is adopted are not adjusted under the modified prospective application. The Company
estimates that the adoption of SFAS No. 123R will result in recognizing in future periods approximately $278 in
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

compensation expense associated with stock options granted prior to the date of adoption of SFAS No. 123R for
which the requisite service period has not been completed as of December 31, 2005. Of this total, the Company
estimates that approximately $125 will be recognized in 2006. The Company expects that the adoption of
SFAS No. 123R will have an adverse impact on its consolidated results of operations and earnings per share
since, in addition to recognizing compensation expense on options granted prior to the adoption date, all future
grants of stock options will result in the recognition of compensation expense.

" In May 2005, SFAS No. 154, “Accounting Changes and’ Error Corrections—a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3”, was issued and is effective for accounting changes and corrections
of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. SFAS No. 154 applies to all voluntary
changes in accounting principles and to changes required by accounting pronouncements that do not contain
transition provisions. SFAS No. 154 requires, among other things, the retrospective application to prior
periods’ financial statements of changes in accounting principles as opposed to including in net income the
cumulative effect of the change in accounting principal in the period of adoption, which was the standard under
APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes.” The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 154 on the Company’s
financial condition or results of operations is not determinable since SFAS No. 154 only affects the adoption of
accounting standards in future periods.

3. Discontinued Operations

In December 2004, the Company sold substantially all of the assets and liabilities of its research division,
Delahaye, for approximately $8,000, of which $7,700 was collected at closing and $300 was collected during
2005. Additionally, the Company received an additional $224 related to a purchase price adjustment based on
working capital at closing. In connection with the settlement of all outstanding claims and contingencies and
the receipt of the additional amount for the purchase price adjustment, in 2005 the Company recorded an
additional gain of $194, net of tax, on the sale of Delahaye.

Delahaye’s operations are reported as a discontinued operation for all periods presented in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements, and the operating results of Delahaye are reflected separately
from the results of continuing operations through December 31, 2004, the date of sale. The results of operations
and the gain on sale of Delahaye are presented as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31,
2005 2004, and 2003, respectively, as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Revenues ‘ $ - $ 9,022 $ 8,670
Loss from operations before income taxes $ - 8 @74 $ (304)
Gain on sale of division _ 284 4,915 -
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
before income taxes _ 284 4,641 (304)
Income tax expense 90 1,866 50

Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ 194 § 2,775 $ (354
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The current liabilities of Delahaye reported as a discontinued operation at December 31, 2003, consisted
entirely of accrued expenses. The current and non-current assets of Delahaye reported as a discontinued
operation at December 31, 2003, consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents ' g 2
Accounts receivable 1 2,171
Prepaid expenses l 235
Total current assets “ $ 2,408
Property and equipment - net : $ 856
Goodwill ‘j 228
Other assets 781
Total non-current assets $ 1,865

4. Impairment Charges

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company incurred impairment charges totaling $715, of
which $342 related to two investments previously accounted for under the cost method. In addition, the
Company incurred an impairment charge of $373 related to its 50% interest in Business Wire/Medialink, LLC
(“Newstream™), a joint venture with Business Wire, that provided for the delivery of multi-media content to on-
line newsrooms. During 2004, Business Wire and the Company each made an additional capital contribution of
$256. In December 2004, the joint venture was dissolved and the Company recognized an impairment charge
equal to its remaining investment in the joint venture at the time of dissolution. Under its agreement with
Business Wire upon dissolution of the joint venture, the Company continued to provide services under the
Newstream name through December 31, 2005. In January 2006, the Company commenced providing services
similar to those provided by the joint venture through a new proprietary distribution platform,

The financial position and results of operatlons of Newstream as of and for the years ended December
31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows: ‘

2004 L2003

(Unaudited)
Total current assets $ 1,767 $ 1,147
Total assets $ 1,934 $ 1,764
Total current liabilities $ 1,770 $ 1,616
Members’ equity $ 164 $ 148
Revenues 3 1,012 $ 1,186
Operating loss $ (495) $ (615)




5 MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
! NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

s. Réstructuring Charges -

; In September 2003, the Company completed a plan to'shut down one of its office locations in Norwalk,
CT, by subleasing the abandoned space. In connection with this plan, the Company incurred a restructuring
charge of $592, all of which represented facility closure costs. Both the primary lease and the sublease have
terms extending through February 2008. The remaining liability for future payments and the amounts charged
against the restructuring liability were as follows:

' Balance at December 31, 2003 | § 555
! Payments ‘ (192)
f

' Balance at December 31, 2004 - 363
)‘ Payments ()]
‘ Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 292

At December 31, 2005, $164 of the restructuring liability is included as a component of “Other long-term
liabilities” and $128 is included as a component of “Other current liabilities.”

6. Property and Equnpment

Property and equlpment at December 31 cons1sted of the following:

2005 2004
| Equipment - . $ 6787 S 6472
. Furniture and fixtures . o 1,353 1,390
. Licenses and software o » : 1,734 - 780
. Leasehold improvements ‘ - 3444 3,461
- Total 13,318 12,103
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 8,938 8,034
Net S 4,380 $ 4,069

7.. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities at December 31 consisted of the following:

2005 2004
' Salaries and benefits $ 159 S 1,784
I Direct costs 1,547 1,660
i Client prepayments 938 775
;‘ Deferred revenue 590 670
! Professional fees 319 ‘ 659
. Other accruals 932 810
. Total $ 5922 8 6358




MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8. Line of Credit

Prior to 2005, the Company had a credit facility with a bank under which it borrowed funds at an interest
rate equal the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 5.5%. The Company fully repaid amounts outstanding under this credit
facility in December 2004 and the credit facility was terminated. The average variable rate on borrowings
under this credit facility for the year ended December 31, 2003, and the 2004 period through the termination, of
the facility was 3.7% and 5.7%, respectively.

9. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31 consisted of the following:

2005 2004
Convertible debentures ' $ 5,000 $ 5,000
Unamortized discount : (955) (1,167)
Net _ } $ 4,045 $ 3,833

In November 2004, the Company issued redeemable subordinated convertible debentures with a face
value of $5,000. The Debentures, which are unsecured and mature in November 2009, bear interest at a rate
equal to the higher of 7% or the 6-month LIBOR rate (as defined) plus 4.5% for the ﬁrst three years and at an
adjustable rate thereafter. The convertible debentures provide each holder with the option to convert their
securities into shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $4.05 per share. In addition, as part of the
issuance of the convertible debentures, each holder received detachable warrants to purchase an aggregate of
582,929 shares of the Company’s common stock at a price of $3.99 per share. The Company can call the
outstanding convertible debentures at the end of the first, second, and third years at a price equal to 115%,
110%, and 100%, respectively, of the face value. Injaddition, as of November 2005 the Company can force the
holders of the convertible debentures to convert into shares of the Company’s common stock 1f the market price
of the common stock exceeds $7.09 per share, subject to certain other conditions. e

The gross proceeds of $5,000 from the issuance of the convertible debentures and the detachable
warrants were allocated between the two financial instruments based on their relative fair values at the date of
issuance. The fair value of the warrants of $1,200 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
and the following assumptions: expected volatility of 81.1%, expected life of five years, risk free interest rate
of 3.51%, and no dividend yield. The fair value of the warrants was recorded as additional paid-in capital and a
discount on the convertible debentures, which is being amortized as a component of interest expense over the
life of the convertible debentures. The remaining gross proceeds of $3,800 were ascribed to the fair value of the
convertible debentures, which accretes in value as the discount is amortized.

In connection with the issuance of the convertible debentures, the Company incurred fees totaling $256,
which are being amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the convertible debentures.
Interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, included $212 and $33, respectively, from
the amortization of the discount and $54 and.$ 8§, respectively, from the amortization of the deferred financing
fees. The average interest rate on the convertible debentures was 8.5% and 7.3% for the years ended December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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MEDIALINK WORLDWIDE INCORPORATED
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

|
l

10. Leases

' The Company leases certain property and equipment used in its operations under agreements that are
classified as both capital and operating leases. Such agreements generally include provisions for inflation-based
rate adjustments and, in the case of leases for buildings and office space, payments of certain operating
expenses and property taxes. :

|

- Future minimum rental payments required under the capital leases and operating leases that have initial
or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:

i Capital - Operating

f Leases Leases
2006 $ 70 $ 3263
. 2007 2,510
12008 2,087
| 2009 1,616
| 2010 1,259
|

| Total minimum lease payments $ 70 $ 10,735

The Company has non-cancelable subleases related to certain properties under which the Company will
receive minimum sublease rental payments through 2009 totaling approximately $1,432.
! _
Assets recorded under capital leases are included in property and equipment at December 31 as follows:

2005 - 2004
' Equipment $ 288 $ 307
* Less accumulated depreciation 242 182
| Net $ 46 S 125

- Total rental expense under operating leases amounted to $2,550, $2,344, and $2,207, for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. :

11. Preferred Stock

During 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the adoption of a Preferred Stock Rights
Agreement (the “Rights Agreement”), under which a dividend distribution of one preferred stock purchase right
(the; “Purchase Right”) was declared for each outstanding share of the Company’s common stock, payable to
common stockholders of record at the close of business on August 30, 2001. Each Purchase Right has an
exercise price of $50.00 and entitles the holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of the Company’s
Series A Participating Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred”). The Purchase Rights continue to be
represented by, and trade with, the Company's common stock certificates unless the Purchase Rights become
exercisable, which will only occur, with certain exceptions, in the event that a person or group acquires, or
announces a tender or exchange offer to acquire, a beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the Company's
common stock then outstanding. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors have
authorized 50,000 shares of the Series A Preferred, none of which was issued or outstanding.
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12. Income Taxes

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes were as follows:

following:

- 2005 2004 2003
Current:
Federal $ (310) $  (916) $ -
State and local - (395) -
Total current ; (310) (1,311) . -
Deferred: ‘ , '
Federal { - 1,483 (235)
State and local , - 521 35
Total deferred 3 - 2,004 (200)
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes } $ (310) 3 693 b (200)
The provision (benefit) for income taxes varied from the Federal statutory income tax rate due to the
2005 2004 2003
Taxes at statutory rate $ (2,057) $ (1,038) $  (863)
_ State and local income taxes, net of Federal benefit (344) (150) (68)

- Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets | 1,936 1,839 650
Non-deductible expenses and other ] 155 42 81
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 3 (310 3 693 $  (200)
Federal statutory rate 34.00% 34.00% 34.00%

 Effective rate L 5.12% (22690% 7.88%

The Company generated losses from contmumg operations before taxes for the years ended December

31,2005, 2004, and 2003, as follows:

2003

2005 2004
Domestic LS 4804 S (1437) 5 (529
Foreign (1,246) (L616) 2,013)
Total - S (6050) S (3.053)
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The components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31 were as follows:

f - . , 2005 - 2004

+ Deferred tax assets:
- Accounts receivable . $ 230 $ 250
, Property and equipment 77 -
¢ Other intangible assets _ 1,072 1,223
. Minority interest - ) 475 ‘ 270
i Equity investments 304 304
* Accrued compensation ‘ 865
Other accrued expenses 225 166
. Net operating loss carryforwards » 3,084 2,094
. Total deferred tax assets 6,332 4,307
‘ Deferred tax liabilities: :
. Goodwill o _ 1,593 1,206
~ Property and equipment - 166
. Other assets . : - : 132
I Total deferred tax hablhtles 1,593 1,504
Net deferred tax asset before Valuation allowance 4,739 2,803
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets 4,739 2,803
Net deferred tax asset 3 - 3 -

At December 31, 2005, the Company had Federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$1,610 ‘that expire in 2025 and domestic state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $7,600 that
expire in 2016 through 2020. At December. 31, 2005, the Company had foreign net-operating loss
carryforwards of $1,400 that do not expire. The Company established a valuation allowance to reserve for
certain of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2004, based on its projections at that time leading the
Company to believe that it was not more likely than not that the benefit associated with the deferred tax assets
would be realized in future periods. Based on its most recent projections, the Company continues to believe
that it is not more likely than not that such benefits will be realized, and therefore established a valuation
allowance to reserve for certain of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2005. The change in the valuation
allowance of $1,936 during 2005 is reflected as a component of the Company s income tax expense for the year
ended December 31, 2005. ' .

13 Stock Options
! Under a stock option plan covering employees and other eligible participants (the “Employee Plan”), the
Company grants stock options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock. Stock options granted
under the Employee Plan generally become exercisable over a four-year period, with 20% being exercisable on
the grant date and an additional 20% becoming exercisable on the anniversary of the grant date in each of the
next four years. Incentive stock options granted under the Employee Plan generally have a term of ten years
and an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date.
Incentive stock options issued to employees who own more than 10% of the voting power of all classes of
equity of the Company have a term of five years and an exercise price equal to at least 110% of the fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the grant date. Non-qualified stock options granted under the
Employee Plan have a term of fifteen years and an exercise price that is determined for each individual grant by
a committee appointed by the Company’s board of directors. There are 1,670,808 shares of the Company’s
cdmmon stock reserved for the issuance of stock options under the Employee Plan, and at December 31, 2005,
405,069 shares remained available for the issuance of stock options.
[
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Under a stock option plan covering members of its board of directors (the “Directors’ Plan”™), the
Company grants stock options to non-employee directors. Newly appointed non-employee directors are granted
10,000 stock options upon their appointment or election to the board of directors, and all non-employee
directors are granted 3,000 stock options on the first business day of each year. Stock options granted under the
Directors’ Plan vest ratably over a three-year period, generally have a term of ten years, but cannot have a term
that exceeds fifteen years, and have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the Company’s common
stock on the grant date. There are 380,000 shares of the Company’s common stock reserved for the issuance of
stock options under the Directors’ Plan, and at December 31, 2003, 153,000 shares remained avaxlable for the
issuance of stock options. |

Through December 31, 2005, the Company accounted for the issuance of stock options to employees and
non-employee directors in accordance with the provisions of APB No. 25, which requires compensation cost to
be measured at the grant date based on the intrinsic value of the stock options granted. The intrinsic value of a
stock: option is equal to the difference between the market price of the common stock on the grant date and the
exercise price of the option. There was no compensation cost recognized by the Company upon the grant of
stock options under the Employee Plan or the Directors’ Plan for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003. During 2005, the Company recogrized compensation expense totaling approximately $21- in’connection
with the accelerated vesting of cerfain stock options granted under the Employee Plan to employees -whose
employment was terminated during the year. Such compensation expense was based on the intrinsic value of
the stock optlons on the date on which vestmg accelerated

SFAS No 123 prov1ded for an altematlve measurement of compensatlon cost based on the falr value of
the stock options granted to employees and non—employee directors. The fair value of a stock option is based on
the intrinsic value as well as-the:time value of the option. The fair value of stock options granted was estimated
on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

‘ Inforrrlation relating'to activity in the’ Eiﬁployee Plan is summarized in the following table. All stock
option grants included in the following table had exercise prices equal to market_price on the grant date.

4
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Weighted :
Average Weighted
Numberof... * Exercise” - Average
‘ shares Price Fair Value
Options outstanding at January 1, 2003 1,134,725 © . 8465 N
Options granted . 13,000 $2.79 $2.48
Options exercised ) (1,600) $2.61
Options forfeited __(107,614) $4.40
Options outstanding at December 31, 2003 1,038,511 $5.47 _
Options granted 196,970 $2.70 $2.26
Options exercised.. - (15257) . 8290 '
Options forfeited ' (135,635) $6.28 -
Options outstanding at December 31, 2004 - 1,084,589 $4.90 :
Options granted ' 30,000 - 829 $2.30
Options exercised {88,773) $2.79
Options forfeited __(152,497) $6.32
Options outstanding at December 31,2005 . 873319
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The number of stock options exercisable under the Employee Plan at December 31, 2005, 2004, and
2003>was as follows

|

2005 2004 2003

‘Exercisable stock options _ 760,789 809, 603' . 791,012

| Information relating to options outstandmg under the Employee Plan at December 31, 2005, 1s
summarlzed as follows: .

i Qutstanding ) Exercisable

| Weighted Weighted ) . Weighted
! Average Average Average
| - Exercise Remaining Exercise
_Range of Exercise Prices : ’ Options Price Life Options Price
' $2.61-53.65 ‘ 679,594 . §3.10 4356 - 567,064 . - -$3.18
' $5.38 - $6.38 ' 67,075 $ 597 2.29 - 67,075 - $597
| $11.13-$11.25 71,700 - . $11.23 299 . 71,700 - $11.23

i‘ $15.00 - $16.13 : 54,950 $15.92 247 . - 54,950 $15.92

Information relating to activity in the Directors’ Plan is summarized in the followmg table. All option
grants mcluded in the following table had exercise prices equal to market pnce on the grant date.

o ) : . . Weighted

- ‘ . Average - Weighted
\ Number of Exercise Average

;" _ ‘ ‘ shares __Price Fair Value
| Options outstanding at January 1, 2003 160,606 S $7.16 ‘

1 Options granted 31,000 $3.19 $2.78

!

' Options outstanding at December 31, 2003 191,600 36.52

. Options granted , 31,000 $3.38 » $2.92

; Options outstanding at December 31, 2004 222,600 $6.08 .

i Options granted 24,000 $3.48 $2.87

. Options exercised o (9,000) $3.43 ‘

1 Options forfeited .. (44,000) $7.52

Options outstanding at December 31, 2005 193,600

The number of stock options exercisable under the Directors’ Plan at December 31 2005 2004 and
2003 was as follows:

‘ 2005 2004 * 2003

Exercisable stock options 145,600 161,591 135,925
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Information - relating to options: outstandmg under the Dxrectors Plan at December 31, 2005,
summarized as follows: » ‘

. Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted . Weighted
Average Average Average
: Exercise Remaining ) Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices : Options Price Life - : Options - Price

82,61 -$4.38 145,600 - $3.43 552 97,600 $3.46
$7.25-310.13 - : 24,000 . $9.09 2.54 24,000 $9.09

- $13.25-8%19.38 " 24,000 © $14.88 2.58 24,000 $14.88

The following weighted-average assumptions were used in estimating the fair value of stock options
granted under the Employee Plan: '

2005 ~ 2004 . - 2003
Expected life. - - 9 years 9 years " 9 years
Expected volatility: : 0.7581 . - .. 0.8579 1.0016
- Risk-free interest rate o  4.28% 427% - - 3.96%
Expected dividend yield .- .. 0% . 0% Lo 0%

The following weighted-average assumptlons were used in estimating the fair value of stock options
granted under the Directors’ Plan:

2005 2004 2003
Expected life ‘ . 10 years ' v 10 yeafs 10.years
Expected volatility . - -0 0.7641 0.8674 0.9489
Risk-free interest rate - . - L 4.15% 4.52% 3.49% .
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%

The Company adopted SFAS No. 123R effective January 1, 2006, and elected the modified prospective
application as the transition method. Accordingly, in:2006 the Company will recognize compensation expense
on stock options granted prior to 2006 for which the requisite service period was not completed as of December
31, 2005. In addition, the Company will recognize compensation expense for all options granted subsequent to
the adoption of SFAS No. 123R. The Company estimates that approximately $278 in compensation expense
will be recognized in future periods associated with stock options granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No.
123R, of which the Company estimates that approximately $125 will be recognized in 2006. In the first quarter
of 2006, the Company granted a total of 68,600 stock options to non-employee directors, of which'37,600 were
fully vested upon grant and 31,000 of which will vest ratably over a three-year period, and granted 121,640
stock options to-employees, which will vest ratably over a four-year period. The fair value of these stock option
grants totaled $435, which will be recognized as;compensation expense over the service period, with
approximately $166 to be recognized in 2006. The falr value of these stock option grants was estimated using a
binomial lattice model .

14. Earnmgs per Share

Basic earmngs {loss) per share of common stock is computed by dwxdmg income (loss) available to
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. There were no
reconciling items to net loss to arrive.at loss available;to common stockholders for the years ended December
31, 2005, 2004, and 2003. Diluted eamings (loss) per:share of common stock is computed by giving effect to
all dilutive potential common shares. The number of shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per
share for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, excluded 99,279, 99,715, and 50,083,
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respectively, of incremental shares related to stock options and warrants. Such, incremental shares were
excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per share due to their antidilutive effect. :

15. lflet'irement’P]an

"' The Company has a defined contribution plan in which eligible employees who have attained 21 years of
age may coniribute on both a pretax and after-tax basis up to a maximum of 15% of their annual salary, subject
to annual limits established by the Internal Revenue Service.. The Company can make discretionary
contributions. Employees are fully vested at all times in contributions they make to the plan, and employees
whohave completed at least one year of service and are employed with the Company on the last business day of
the year fully vest in Company contributions. The Company made no discretionary contributions to its defined
contnbution plan for the years en_ded Dece;nbef. 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively..

16. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is contingently liable for transactions arising in the ordinary course of business and from

time to time may become involved in various legal proceedings in which damages and other remedies are
sought. In the opinion of Company management, after review with legal counsel;-the ultimate resolution of
these matters will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. " - -

P
17. jGuarantees

In connection with the sale of Delahaye, the Company agreed to indemnify the purchaser for breaches of
certain standard representations and warranties. In the event any such indemnification obligation were to be
triggered, the Company may be liable when the damages incurred by the purchaser exceed $100. The Company
would be liable for the full amount of the damages incurred, including the first $100, with'such damages hmlted
to $2 000 1n total. No amount has been recognlzed in connectlon with such potential habxhty :

The Company has entered into subleases with third parties relating to properties no longer occupied by
the! Company. Under an assignment of one of these subleases, the third party remits payment directly to the
langilord although the-Company remains the primary obligor for the lease payments. If the third party ceased to
temit payment directly to the landlord, the Companty would ‘be liable for such payments. The maximum
potential amount for which the Company can be held lable is approx1mately $294. No amount has been
recognlzed in connectlon w1th such potennal liability. - ‘

181( Concentratlon of Credit R1sk

3 Fmanmal instruments - that potentially subject the ‘Company to-concentrations of credit nsk consist
priicipally of cash equivalents and -trade receivables. - The Company maintains' cash balances and -cash
equivalents with high credit quality financial institutions. - S e S
" The Company provides credit to clients on an uncollateralized basis after evaluating client
credltworthlness The Company’s clients are not concentrated in any specific geographic region, but are
concentrated in the automotive, insurance, pharmaceutical, consumer products, and public relations agency
busmesses For the year ended December 31, 2003, revenues from Altria Group, Inc., and its subsidiaries
represented approximately 16. 5% of the Company s consolidated revenues. The' Company s five largest clients
provided approximately 9.9%; 15.2%, and 25.5% of revenues for the years €nded December 31; 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively. In addition, amounts due from these customers represented 12.5% and 20:. 1% 6f trade
accounts ‘receivable ‘at-December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company does not believe' that a
significant reduction in businéss from any of its clients would have a material adverse effect on its results of
opetations or financial condition since no single client or group-of clients is responsible for a significant portion
of the Company’s revenues or represents a significant portion of the Company’s trade receivables.
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19. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Inforhation

Payments of interest and income taxes were as follows:

. ‘ < 2005 . . ":.4 2604 2003
Interest paid B s a8 s 3’ 0§ 309
Income taxes paid (refunded) — net e B 4180 S0 9« 8 (1,580)

There were no non-cash investing and ﬁnancing activities for the year ended December 31, 2005. Non-
cash investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, were as follows:

2004 - - 2003
.. Lo '
Common stock received as repayment of loan $ 143
Receivable due from purchaser of a business @ - $ 605 .
Common stock issued in connection with acquisitions 3 275

20. Fair Value of Financial Instrumenfs

The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Company usmg avaxlable :
market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable Judgment it requlred in
interpreting market data to develop estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not
necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company would realize in a current market exchange

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, non-trade receivables included as part of other
current assets, and obligations under capital leases at December 31, 2005 and 2004, are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values due to the short-term nature of these instruments. The carrying amounts of
the convertible debentures at December 31, 2005 and 2004, are a reasonable approximation of their fair values
since the interest rates were above the ﬁxed rate minimum, resulting in the convertible debentures being
variable-rate obligations. Non-trade receivables included as part of other non-current assets ‘with carrying
amounts of $20 and $31 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, had fair values of $18 and $28,
respectively. The fair values of these instruments wete estimated by discounting the future streams of payments
at the interest rate on the convemble debentures, Wthh is used as a surrogate for the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. .

21. Segment Information
The Company has determined that its two reportable segments are media communications services and

video watermarking services. The media communications services segment provides broadcast services,
including consultation, production, distribution, and monitoring services, to corporate entities and other
organizations and press release wire services to domestic governmental, public affairs, and non-profit
organization news sources. Through the Company’s Teletrax subsidiaries, the video watermarking services
segment provides broadcast intelligence to video content providers such as entertainment companies, news
organizations, television syndicators, and direct-response marketing companies.

The Company identifies its reportable segments based on the services provided by its various operations.
The media communications services segment is an aggregation of such services provided by the Company’s
broadcast operations in the United States and the United Kingdom and the press release wire services provided
by the Company’s U.S. Newswire division.
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reported as a discontinued operation (see Note 3 to the consohdated financial statements)

The Company measures profit or loss of its segments based on operatmg income. Operatmg income for
segments excludes 1mpa1rments, restructuring charges, and losses from a joint venture. The accounting policies
used to measure operatmg 1ncome of the segments are the same as those outlined in Note 2 to the consolidated

ﬁnan01a1 ‘statements.

Revenues:

‘Media. communications services

Video watermarking services
Total
Operating income (loss):

Media communications services
Video watermarking services

' Total

Othér business activities

" Impairment of investments

- Loss from joint venture

Restructuring charges
Interest expense —net

LOSs from continuing Qpe_raiions before taxes

Depreczatzon expense

' Medla commumcanons SCI'VICES

Vldeo watermarkmg services
Other business activities.

Total

~'Segment information relating to results of continuing operations was as follows:

. The Company previously operated a research services segment that provided analysis of public relations
and corporate communications activities on behalf of clients. - This-segment was_sold-in-December 2004 and.is

oo 2008 - 2004 . - 2003
$ 34,708 $ 35239 $ 34,738
2,004 1,624 645
$ 36712 - $ 36863  $ 35383
$ 2,956 $ 3,832 $ 4349
(2,651) (2,033) (2,448)
305 . 1799 1,901
(5,864) (3497) - (3,249)
‘ ‘ (247) (316)
v - (592)
(491) (393) (28
8 -(6050) .8 (3.053) .8 (2538)
Ueio08 S 1,138 0§ 1,183
Coeld 547 392
T 38 T4 -
s 1660 S 1689 8 1,575
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Segment information related to the Company,’s assets was:as follows:"

2005 2004
Total Assets: .
Media communications services. . o e ‘ $§ 21,657 $ 27,348
. Video watermarking services - - C e 2,173, - - 2440
. Other business activities | e E 9,096 8,985
Total - | I o § .32926. § 38773
Expenditures on long-lived assets: .
Media communications services- * . _ o i _ $ 1,268 $ 409
- Video watermarking services e 422 300
Other business activities \ 172 24
Discontinued eperations S o 120
Total R 5 1862  §- 853

' The Company’s research segment ‘generated revenues in foreign countries of*$1,987. and $1,226. for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Segment information for continuing operatlons
relating to geographic regions for 2005, 2004 and 2003 was as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Revenues:
United States % 30,190 $ 30,866 Y 30,675
United Kingdom ‘ 6,522 5,997 4,708
Total $ 36,712 $ 36,863 $ 35,383
Long-lived assets: *
United States - $ 3,766 $ 3,329
United Kingdom : 614 740
Total $ 4380 $ 4069

22. Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes all changes to equity that are not the result of transactions with
shareholders and is comprised of net income and other comprehensive income. For the years ended December
31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, other comprehensive income (loss) of $(197), $152, and $7, respectively, consisted
entirely of foreign currency translation adjustments on which no tax effect is reported since they relate to
indefinite investments in foreign subsidiaries. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, accumulated other
comprehensive loss in the consolidated balance sheet of $393 and $196 respectively, consisted entirely of
foreign currency translation adjustments.
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23. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Revenues

Loss, from continuing opérations

Net loss

Loss per share from continuing

operations — basic and diluted

Revenues -
Loss from continuing operations

Net income (loss)

Income (loss) per share from coﬁtiﬁuing
operations - basic and diluted

[T

b

J

2005 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$ 8,548 $ 9223 $ 8,827 ~$ 10,114
§ (1,189 $ (923) $  (1,307) $ (232D
§ (1,129) $ (923) $ (1,173) £ (2,321)
$  (0.20) $  (0.15) $ (022 $  (0.38)
2004 Quarter Ended
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31
$ 8,488 $ 9,802 $ 9,221 $ .9,352
$ (743) $ (23) $ (596) § (2,384
§ (1,018 $ 9 $ (456) $ 494
$ (012). $ 000 . $ . (0.10) $  (0.40)
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Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Medialink Worldwide Incorporated (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit No. 2.5 of Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on January 16, 1997 (File
No. 000-21989)).

Amendment ! to the Amended and Restated By-Laws of Medialink Worldwide Incorporated (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit No. 3. 2 of Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December

©31,2003).

Preferred Stock Rights Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2001, between Medialink Worldwide Incorporated
and Mellon Investor Services, LLC, including the Certificate of Designation, the form of Rights Certificate and
the Summary of Rights attached thereto as Exhibits A, B, and C, respectively (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit No. 4.1 of Registrant’s Reglstrauon Statement on Form 8-A filed on August 16, 2001 (File No. 000-
21989)).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2005, by and between Medialink
Worldwide Incorporated and Laurence Moskowitz.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of August 28, 2001, by and between Medialink
Worldwide Incorporated and J. Graeme :McWhirter (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.2 of
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001).

Separation Agreement and General Release, dated as of December 30, 2005 by and between Medialink
Worldwide Incorporated and J. Graeme McWhirter.

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated December 31, 2004, by and between Medialink Worldwide Incorporated and
Bacon’s Information Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K/A filed on March 14, 2005).

Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of Certain Assets of Medialink UK Limited forming part of the Delahaye
Business, dated December 31, 2004, by and between Medialink UK Limited and Romeike Limited
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on
March 14, 2005).

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated 401(k) Tax Deferred Savings Plan (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No.
10.33 of Registrant’s Registration Statement'on Form S-1 filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-14119)).
Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan and form of Stock Option Agreement (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit No. 10.34 of Reg1strant s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-
14119)).

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated 1996 Directors Stock Option Plan and form of 1996 Directors Stock Option
Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.35 of Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on October 15, 1996 (File No. 333-14119)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.10 of Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

Forbearance Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.11 of Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003).

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 11, 2005, by and between Medialink Worldwide Incorporated and
Kenneth G. Torosian (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.12 of Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005). ‘

Employment Agreement, dated as of September 9, 2005, by and between Medialink Worldwide Incorporated
and Lawrence A. Thomas (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit No. 10.13 of Registrant’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2005). .

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Certification of the principal executive ofﬁcer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of the principal financial ofﬁcer pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. |

Certification of the principal executive officer and principal financial ofﬁcer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Laurence Moskowitz

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer,

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated

Bruce E. Bishop
Chief Financial Officer; Text100

Harold Finelt
Venture Partner,
American Research & Development

John M. Greening
Associate Professor, Medill Graduate
Program; Northwestern University

Donald Kimelman
Director, Information and Civic
Initiatives; The Pew Charitable Trusts

Douglas S. Knopper
Chief Executive Officer; BitPass, Inc.

Catherine Lugbauer
President; The Lugbauer Group

James J. O’Neill
Private Financial Consultant

Theodore Wm. Tashiik
Member; Tashlik, Kreutzer, Goldwyn &
Crandell P.C.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Messrs. Bishop, Finelt and O’Neill

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Messrs. Finelt, Kimelman and O’Neili

NOMINATING COMMITTEE
Ms. Lugbauer and Mr. Greening

STOCK OPTION COMMITTEE
Messrs. Finelt, Kimelman and O’Neill

i

CORPORATE CONTACT

Mary C. Buhay |

Senior Vice President,

Corporate Communications,
Medialink Worldwide Incorporated
IR@medialink.com

TRANSFER AGENT
Mellon Shareholder Services LLC

44 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005
Www.mellon-investpr.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG LLP ‘

345 Park Avenue |

New York, NY 10154
(212) 758-9700

OUTSIDE COUNSEL'

Tashlik, Kreutzer,
Goldwyn & Crandell P.C.

40 Cuttermill Road, Suite 200
Great Neck, NY 11021

(516) 466-8005

FORM 10-K

The Company would be pleased to provide,
without charge, a copy of its most recent 10-
K upon wriiten request to the Chief
Financial Officer, Medialink Worldwide
Incorporated, 708 Third Avenue, New York,
NY 10017. A full copy is also available
online at www.medialink.com.

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING

The common sharesjof Medialink
Worldwide Incorporated are traded over
The Nasdaq Stock Market® under the
symbol MDLK.

HEADQUARTERS

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated
708 Third Avenue

New York, NY 10017 USA

(212) 682-8300

(800) 843-0677

Fax (212) 6382-2370
www.medialink.com

INTERNATIONAL HUB

Medialink Worldwide Incorporated
7 Fitzroy Square

London, W1T SHL, United Kingdom
011-44-207-554-2700

Fax 011-44-207-554-2710

WORLDWIDE OFFICES _
Chicago + Dallas * Los Angeles ¢
London * New York * Norwalk, CT
San Francisco » Washington, DC

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
Medialink Worldwide Incorporated will
conduct its Annual Meeting at the
Company’s Headquarters, 708 Third
Avenue, 8" Floor, New York, NY 10017
USA, at 9:30 a.m. on Thursday, June 8,
2006.
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